AGENDA
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING

TUESDAY, JUNE 14, 2022 - 10:00 AM
BECAUSE OF THE CONTINUED CLOSURE OF LAND BANK OFFICES TO THE PUBLIC
DUE TO THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC, THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD REMOTELY.

THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

INSTRUCTIONS FOR REGISTERING FOR PUBLIC ACCESS TO THIS MEETING
AND FOR SUBMISSION OF PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE LOCATED ON THE PAGE
FOLLOWING THE AGENDA

AGENDA ITEMS

1. RollCall

2.  Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of May 10, 2022
3.  Executive Director’s Report

4. Property Dispositions

A. Development — Request for Proposals - TABLED

B. Side/Rear Yards
The property below is proposed for conveyance to the applicant as a side yard. The applicant
owns and resides in the adjacent home. The property will be subject to a 30-year mortgage
and permanently restricted for use as a side or rear yard.
e 6131 Baynton Street - Leah Koontz (CD8)

5. Public Comment (Old & New Business)

6. Adjournment

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 1 of 48




FROM: Andrea Imredy Saah, Esq., Senior Counsel

RE: Philadelphia Land Bank June 14, 2022 Board Meeting
Remote Board Meeting Notice, Public Attendance, and Comment Procedures

DATE: June 3, 2022

A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank (“Land Bank”) is currently
scheduled for Tuesday, June 14, 2022, with the executive session to begin at 9:30 A.M. and the meeting
to begin at 10:00 A.M. Because of the continued closure of Land Bank offices to the public due to the
COVID-19 pandemic, this meeting will be held remotely using Zoom webinar. The meeting is open to
public attendees and for public comments and questions.

PLEASE NOTE: To participate in the meeting on vour computer, you must register in advance. This

requirement is necessary to allow us to collect the names of participants as required by law. Using a
computer, tablet or smartphone, use the following link:

https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/ WN_6hBIBusqQIKRWAUv3al23g.

After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the webinar.
Members of the public who join before 10 A.M. will be given access when the meeting begins.

To join the meeting by calling in, dial one of the following numbers:
+1 267 831 0333 or +1 301 715 8592 or +1 312 626 6799 or +1 929 205 6099 or +1 346 248 7799

Webinar ID: 825 0608 2170; Passcode: 732993

The Board agenda and package will be available to view no later than five (5) days prior to the Board
meeting at https://phdcphila.org/who-we-are/boards/philadelphia-land-bank-board/.

Public comment and questions regarding the matters that are posted on the agenda may be submitted prior to
and during the Board meeting.

To speak during the Board meeting when public comment on the agenda item is requested by the
Board Chair, use raise the “Raise Hand” function at the bottom of the screen. You may also enter
your questions/comment in the “Q&A” function. Do not use the Chat function for questions or comments.
The Board Chair may limit repetitious questions/comments. Q&A submissions will be attached to the
minutes of the meeting.

To submit questions/comments prior to the Board meeting, you must email the following information
to andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov by 3:00 p.m. on Monday, June 13, 2022:

. Your full name and group or company affiliation, if applicable;
. Contact information (your email address or phone number);

. Identify the agenda item that you are addressing; and

. State your question/comment in a clear and concise manner.

Questions/comments submitted via email will be summarized at the Board meeting, answered or addressed
to the extent possible, and attached to the minutes of the meeting.

If possible, the Board meeting will be recorded and made publicly available within thirty (30) days. If you
have a question or comment about an agenda item after the meeting concludes, please submit it as described
above. It will be addressed to the extent possible by Land Bank staff or at the next Board meeting.

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 2 of 48


https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_6hBlBusqQlKRWAUv3al23g
https://phdcphila.org/who-we-are/boards/philadelphia-land-bank-board/
mailto:andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov

JUNE 14, 2022 PLB BOARD MEETING

MATERIALS FOR AGENDA ITEM 2

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 3 of 48



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK

MAY 10, 2022, BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES (DRAFT)

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank was held on Tuesday,
May 10, 2022, via Zoom webinar, of which proper notices were given.

CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 10:04 a.m.
Andrea Imredy Saah, Senior Counsel, made the following announcements:

Today’s Board meeting is being held via an authorized communication device because of the
continued closure of Land Bank offices to the public due to the Covid pandemic. This meeting is
being recorded. Questions and comments may be made using the Q&A or raised hand button at the
bottom of the screen. If you are calling in and not using the Zoom webinar link, you may ask
questions or make comments by pressing *9 on your phone. You can also use the “raise hand”
function at the bottom of the screen. Please do not use the chat function. If any member of the public
has any issues submitting questions or comments, please send an email to
Andrea.Saah@phdc.phila.gov. Please note all questions and comments received by email or through
the Q&A function will be included in the minutes.

Prior to today’s Public Session, the Board held an Executive Session at which the Board received
information about the agenda and the potential tabling of one agenda item.

Item 1
Roll Call

The following members of the Board of Directors reported present: Anne Fadullon, Alexander
Balloon, Andrew Goodman, Maria Gonzalez, Michael Johns, Majeedah Rashid, Michael Koonce,
Rebecca Lopez Kriss, and Rick Sauer.

The following Board members were absent: Richard DeMarco and Joshu Harris.

The following staff members were present: Angel Rodriguez, Jessie Lawrence, Andrea Imredy
Saah, Esq., Jamila Davis, Todd Hestand, Jessica Hogan, Rachel Mulbry, Cristina Martinez,
Mathen Pullakattu, Tracy Pinson-Reviere, Brian Romano, Carolyn Terry and Shelvia Williams.

Public Attendees: The list of public attendees is attached to these minutes.

A quorum of Directors was present, and the meeting, having been duly convened, proceeded with
business.

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 4 of 48


mailto:Andrea.Saah@phdc.phila.gov

Item 2
Approval of Board Minutes

Ms. Fadullon called for questions or comments regarding the minutes of the Board meeting of
April 12, 2021. There were none.

Ms. Fadullon called for a motion to approve the minutes. Mr. Balloon moved to approve the
minutes. Mr. Johns seconded the motion.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the April 12, 2022,
Board Meeting minutes.

Item 3
Executive Director’s Report

Mr. Rodriguez reported to the Board and public about the activities of the Land Bank in the past
month. In preparation for the Turn the Key housing program, the Land Bank has started issuing
Requests for Proposals (RFPs). Entering the first phase, the Land Bank issued and awarded three
(3) RFPs for properties totaling sixty-three (63) parcels. In the second phase, the Land Bank has
issued another eight (8) RFPs totaling one hundred and forty-nine (149) parcels, the submissions
for which will be due May 20", 2022. Mr. Rodriguez highlighted the work of Land Bank staff to
package about thirty-five (35) RFPs. Every month a new group of RFPs will be released to reach
the goal of developing affordable housing on one thousand (1,000) parcels.

Ms. Fadullon gave clarification for the benefit of the public on the Turn the Key program. The
program will provide up to $75,000 to a qualified home buyer to further buy down the purchase
price of homeownership units produced on public land.

Item 4
Administrative Matters

4.A. Amendment to Resolution No. 2022-9 adopted by the Board on April 12, 2022, to approve
the reduction in the number of housing units to be developed by four (4) single-family units to
forty-one (41) units.

Mr. Lawrence explained that the request is for the Board to amend Resolution No. 2022-9 adopted
on April 12, 2022, which approved Civetta 1, LLC as the developer for forty-five (45) affordable
homeownership units in West Philadelphia’s Haddington neighborhood. The Board is being asked
to approve a reduction in the total unit count to forty-one (41) affordable homeownership units.
The reduction is necessitated by the removal of four (4) properties included in the original RFP,
which are located at 533, 539, 541 & 543 N. Conestoga Street, in order to preserve an existing
garden on these properties. The revised property list included in the project will be as follows:
650, 658 and 662 N. Conestoga Street; 5436 W. Girard Avenue; 5552 Harmer Street; 642, 644 and
653 N. Sickels Street; 534-36, 538-40, 546 and 550 N. 54™ Street; 623-33, 641, 643, 645, 647,

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 5 of 48



649, 651, 653 and 655 N. 55" Street. Other than a reduction in the number of single-family units
constructed, the project will remain the same.

Ms. Fadullon called for questions or comments from the Board. There were none.

Ms. Fadullon asked Senior Counsel if any letters or emails were received on this item. Ms.
Imredy Saah indicated that she received a letter and attachments from Urban Tree Connection
(UTC) and summarized the contents of the email requesting the removal of eight properties on
North Conestoga Street and North 54" Street from the project in order to preserve the open space
known as Memorial Garden, which was recently redesigned in collaboration with Penn Urban
Health Lab and community residents. A petition with eighty-four (84) signatures was attached to
the letter, along with photos of the garden and letters of support from One Art Community Center
and Philadelphia Orchard Project, organizations which partner with UTC. Letters of support for
UTC’s request were also received from Norris Square Neighborhood Project and the Philadelphia
Food Policy Advisory Council. All of the letters are attached to these minutes as Exhibit A.

Ms. Fadullon called for questions and comments from the public, requesting that each speaker
comment only once. Ms. Fadullon recognized Noelle Warford, who identified herself as the
Director of Urban Tree Connection, which works with residents to reclaim abandoned lots and to
beautify them. She presented the history of the open space known as Memorial Garden, which
was created to memorialize children lost to gun violence. She asked the Board to preserve the
open space in its entirety.

Ms. Fadullon then recognized Josh Cohen, representing Councilmember Jones, in whose district
the properties are located. Mr. Cohen asked that the board adopt the amendment to the resolution.
The Council office worked closely with the Land Bank for this RFP and compromised by agreeing
to remove the North Conestoga Street lots from the project; however, the Councilman still wants
the lots on North 54" Street included in the affordable housing development.

Ms. Fadullon recognized Saruh Almendarez, the community organizer with UTC. Ms.
Almendarez read multiple comments from community residents who signed the petition, all of
which requested preservation of the open space.

Ms. Fadullon then recognized Jihad Ali. Mr. Ali asked for confirmation that all parcels are
homeownership opportunities and the prices of the units. Ms. Fadullon responded that there will
be duplex, triplex and single-family homes, and that for the triplex and duplex units, the purchaser
of the buildings will benefit from the income generated from the rental of those properties, which
must remain affordable. Mr. Ali asked whether the results of the RFP will be posted on the
website, and Mr. Rodriguez responded that they will be posted after the question of which
properties are to be awarded to the developer is resolved.

Ms. Fadullon recognized Isel Otero-Vera. Ms. Otero-Vera identified herself as an appointed
member of the Philadelphia Food Policy Advisory Council (FPAC) and as a Philadelphia resident.
Ms. Otero-Vera shared the mission of FPAC and research regarding inequitable access of lower-
income neighborhoods to park space and the effects thereof on those communities. FPAC is

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 6 of 48



requesting the removal of all the parcels occupied by Memorial Garden from the affordable
housing project.

Ms. Fadullon then recognized Nicole Thomas, who identified herself as the Director of the Penn
Urban Health Lab based in the Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania.
Penn Urban Health Lab is a research and action group that partners with communities to design
and build healthy and equitable neighborhoods. Ms. Thomas described the results of research
showing the positive effect of increased open space on the health and well-being of neighborhoods
and requested that the Board remove all of the parcels comprising Memorial Garden from the
project.

Ms. Fadullon recognized Bridget Palombo, who identified herself as an appointed member of
FPAC and a Philadelphia resident. Ms. Palumbo stated that as an active urban open space,
Memorial Garden should never have been included in the RFP for affordable housing. She
requested the removal of the entire Memorial Garden from the affordable housing project and the
disposition of the lots to Urban Tree Connection.

Ms. Fadullon recognized Mike Tomasetti, one of the owners of Civetta 1, LLC, the selected
developer for the affordable housing project, and Civetta Property Group, LLC. Mr. Tomasetti
commented on the benefits of affordable housing to stabilize communities.

Ms. Fadullon then recognized Marlana Moore, who is the Land Preservation Manager at
Neighborhood Gardens Trust (NGT). NGT supports the preservation of the entirety of Memorial
Garden and would like to work with Land Bank to prevent active gardens from being included in
future development sites. She stated that in addition to affordable housing, there is a need for
gardens and green spaces, and Memorial Garden is the site of a federally funded research project
to document the health benefits of green spaces in areas struggling with high levels of public
safety concerns.

There being no further public comments, Ms. Fadullon asked for further questions or comments
from the Board. Mr. Johns stated that he knows the neighborhood very well, having lived around
the corner from Memorial Garden. He indicated that until the garden was renovated during the
past few months, the lots had been full of trash and were not being maintained. He stated that the
Councilman’s agreement to preserve part of Memorial Garden is admirable, and that he hopes that
those lots will be maintained better than they were for the past twenty years. He also indicated
that he regrets that the project is losing four affordable homeownership units, since there are
multiple open spaces and recreational areas in the area that are underutilized and are not being
maintained.

Mr. Sauer asked how the parcels on 55™ Street are being used as part of Memorial Garden and
asked if other vacant lots not included in the RFP are available for inclusion in the RFP so that the
54" Street lots that are part of Memorial Garden could be preserved. Mr. Rodriguez stated that
RFPs usually try to stay within a two to three block area, as they include mostly scattered site
properties and only a few consolidated areas and consider proximity to transportation, and that this
RFP included all of the surplus public property lots in the designated area identified for
development in collaboration with the Councilman.

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 7 of 48



Ms. Gonzalez commented on Mr. Johns’ statement and the community feedback, stating that this
is an opportunity to formalize management of the garden lots going forward so that the garden
remains an asset for the community and the new neighbors who will be moving in and does not
become blighted again.

Ms. Fadullon stated that the there is a need to have these discussions before parcels come to the
Board for consideration, and that Land Bank staff are encouraged to follow up with Councilman
Jones on the offer to work with the Land Bank and the garden groups regarding other potential
open space sites in the area. Everyone agrees that both green space and affordable housing are
important, and they do not need to be in conflict with each other.

Ms. Fadullon asked for motion regarding the resolution amending Resolution No. 2022-9 adopted
by the Board on April 12, 2022.

Mr. Balloon moved to approve the proposed resolution. Mr. Johns seconded the motion.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution
Amending Resolution 2022-9 to Remove 533, 539, 541 and 543 N. Conestoga Street from the
Approved Disposition and to Approve the Corresponding Reduction in Number of Housing Units
Constructed and Price Paid by Civetta 1, LLC, attached to these minutes as Exhibit B.

Item 5
Property Dispositions

5.A.1. Development — Affordable Housing - TABLED

Ms. Fadullon indicated that the proposed disposition of fourteen properties to Civetta Property
Group, LLC for the development of mixed-income homeownership units (nine (9) affordable at
80% AMI and five (5) units at market rate) is being tabled due to several questions around
feasibility that have not yet been resolved. The proposed disposition will be presented to the
Board at a future date.

5.B.1. Development — Request for Proposals

Proposed disposition of 1310, 1315, 1320, 1322, 1326 and 1349 S. Corlies Street, 1537 S. Patton
Street, 3000, 3010, 3018, 3036, 3046 and 3050 Titan Street, 3002, 3003, 3009, 3014, 3016, 3018,
3020, 3022, 3024 and 3026 Wharton Street, 1334 S. 30" Street,and 1329 S. 31° Street to Civetta
Property Group, LLC.

Mr. Lawrence asked the Board to approve the disposition of twenty-five (25) properties in the 2™
Council District to Civetta Property Group, LLC for the development of an affordable
homeownership project. Each of the twenty-five (25) 3-bedroom, 1.5-bath units will be sold for a
maximum sales price of $230,000 to a household with income at or below 80% of Area Median
Income (AMI). Applications were solicited via a Request for Proposals for the properties, and the

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 8 of 48



applicant was the sole qualified bidder for the properties. Properties included in the disposition
are 1310, 1315, 1320, 1322, 1326 and 1349 S. Corlies Street, 1537 S. Patton Street, 3000, 3010,
3018, 3036, 3046 and 3050 Titan Street, 3002, 3003, 3009, 3014, 3016, 3018, 3020, 3022, 3024,
and 3026 Wharton Street, 1334 S. 30" Street and 1329 S. 31% Street. The developer will purchase
the properties at a bid price of $2,500. Evidence of project financing has been provided, and the
applicant is compliant and in good standing with the City of Philadelphia. The project will be
subject to an Economic Opportunity Plan, an Irrevocable Power of Attorney, and a Right of
Reverter. A Declaration of Restrictive Covenants will be recorded for the properties. The
completed units will be subject to use and resale restrictions requiring them to remain affordable
for at least fifteen (15) years, and purchasers of the units will be income-qualified.

Ms. Fadullon asked if any Board member had questions or comments on this item. There were
none.

Ms. Fadullon asked if any emails or letters were received regarding this item. Ms. Imredy Saah
indicated that Melissa Freeman, the owner of 3002 Titan Street, sent an email objecting to the
disposition and requesting 3000 Titan St as a side yard. The email is attached to these minutes as
Exhibit C.

Ms. Fadullon asked for public comments or questions about this disposition, reminding speakers
to keep their comments brief. The first person recognized was Jihad Ali. Mr. Ali asked multiple
questions about the proposed disposition, which Mr. Lawrence answered, and then stated his
views regarding the importance of EOP plans, minority participation in developments, the
difficulty of obtaining information about developers’ past EOP performance from the Land Bank,
and lack of information about Mr. Tomasetti and Civetta Property Group.

Ms. Fadullon then recognized Melissa Freeman. Ms. Freeman stated that she has been trying
since May 24, 2001, when she contacted Councilman Johnson’s efforts to purchase this lot as a
side yard and again in January 2022. She called many different phone numbers and had no
success reaching anyone at the Land Bank. She was unable to submit an application for the lot
online but is still interested in purchasing the lot. Mr. Rodriguez apologized about the difficulties
in reaching the Land Bank. The property was not made available for a side yard purchase because
a determination was made in early 2021 in concert with the Council office that properties in the
19146 zip code area would be prioritized for affordable housing development and not be available
for side yards or gardens. Mr. Rodriguez will look into the reason why Ms. Freeman did not
receive clear messaging regarding her inquiry.

Ms. Fadullon recognized Tiffany Green, who asked if the Board was discussing the Point Breeze
project. Ms. Fadullon indicated that the Point Breeze disposition was tabled. Ms. Fadullon then
recognized Albert Littlepage, who indicated that he had also wanted to address the Board
regarding the Point Breeze project.

Ms. Fadullon recognized Vanessa Hunter, who represents the Black Contractors Coalition. Ms.
Hunter would like ensure that the Coalition’s contractor members from the Grays Ferry area
receive an opportunity to participate in this project. The Coalition has representation in every zip
code. Ms. Hunter is not certain who monitors that portion of the project and would like to be in

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 9 of 48



contact with that person. Mr. Rodriguez will put Jessie Lawrence’s email in the answer to her
question in the chat and will set up a meeting to pass on her information.

Ms. Fadullon recognized Ladreese Grimes, who asked how the neighbors in Point Breeze will be
notified when the tabled Point Breeze disposition is presented to the Board. Mr. Rodriguez
responded that before the disposition comes back to the Board, the Registered Community
Organizations (RCO) will be notified, a notice will be placed on-site at the location of the
property, and a notice of the proposed disposition will also be posted on PHDC’s website as part
of the meeting agenda and then again as part of the Board package.

Ms. Fadullon recognized Charles Reeves, who introduced himself as President of the
Tasker/Morris Neighborhood Association RCO. He stated that Mr. Ali already stated many of his
concerns. The communication between the RCOs and Land Bank is unsatisfactory. RCOs need
more information in order to serve as the voice of their communities. He asked if anybody on the
Board had seen the properties that were already built by Civetta Property Group; several Board
and staff members indicated that they had seen units built by Civetta Property Group. Mr. Reeves
indicated that the units are small and will not serve a family of three people, and he asked again
for more information from the Land Bank so that the RCOs could fulfill their purpose.

Ms. Fadullon recognized Anton Moore, who agreed with Mr. Reeves that RCOs need more
information about the proposed projects, and that the properties being built are very small. RCOs
need to have more information so that they can then provide more information to community
members.

Ms. Fadullon responded that the issue of improved communication with the community is being
explored and then asked if the Board had any additional questions or comments.

Mr. Sauer asked about the size of the homes to be built and how it compares to other properties
that have been approved in other projects. Mr. Rodriguez explained that the size of units in
different projects differs depending on the type of existing housing on the block so that no
variances have to be requested in order to build the new units. The existing building typology on
the blocks in this development is mostly two-story row homes, and the new units to be built will
match the current block typology.

Ms. Fadullon then recognized Carol Foy from the public, who identified herself as a board
member of Philly Thrive. She stated that the houses may be small in size but that they are tall in
size and have very small backyards. She also asked for more affordable housing to be built to be
available for rentals.

There being no further comments or questions, Ms. Fadullon called for a motion regarding the
proposed disposition of the Grays Ferry — Wharton et Al RFP properties.

Ms. Gonzalez moved to approve the proposed disposition. Mr. Balloon seconded the motion.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the board unanimously adopted the Resolution
Authorizing Conveyance of 1310, 1315, 1320, 1322, 1326 and 1349 S. Corlies Street, 1537 S.

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 10 of 48



Patton Street, 3000, 3010, 3018, 3036, 3046 and 3050 Titan Street, 3002, 3003, 3009 and 3014-26
Wharton Street, 1334 S. 30" Steet, 1329 S. 31% Street to Civetta Property Group Limited Liability
Company (also known as Civetta Property Group, LLC), attached to these minutes as Exhibit D.

Item 6
Public Comment (Old & New Business)

Ms. Fadullon asked if anyone from the public wished to raise new or old business.

Mr. Jihad Ali thanked everyone on the Board who is there to assist the public and then stated that
he wished to reiterate that the process shows that there are serious flaws in the Land Bank. There
are other agencies that are fully transparent, such as the PRA, City Council, the Civic Design
Review, and the Planning Commission. The Land Bank should reset and increase its efforts to
make information available. The Land Bank should also revisit whether the product provided by
the developer chosen for the Grays Ferry RFP is the best product for the community. Furthermore,
the Board should send a message to developers that they should take MBE/WBE participation
seriously.

Item 7
Adjournment

There being no further business to address, Ms. Fadullon called for a motion to adjourn the
meeting.

Mr. Koonce moved to adjourn the meeting. Ms. Gonzalez seconded the motion.
Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously voted to adjourn at 11:18 am.

Following the motion, Ms. Fadullon recognized Sharon Kelly, who spoke on behalf of residents of
South 31% Street, who learned of the Grays Ferry Wharton St et Al disposition through a paper
sign, posted on a fence, which was nearly illegible due to rain. The Land Bank could provide
notice to nearby residents by contacting them via email or mail so that they can be prepared to
attend such meetings and give substantive feedback. She indicated that the proposed development
is not welcomed by the residents on this block and stated that the Land Bank’s process is
perceived as being structured in a way that is amenable to abuse and that its decisions result in
many very unhappy people. Ms. Fadullon thanked her for her comments and indicated that ways
to improve notice are being discussed. The meeting adjourned at 11:22 am.

SECRETARY TO THE BOARD

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 11 of 48



PUBLIC ATTENDANCE SHEET

PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING
Tuesday, May 10, 2022, at 10:00 AM, held remotely using Zoom Webinar.

User Name (Original Name)

User Name (Original Name)

a weiss/SolLo

Saruh Almendarez

albert littlepage

Sharon Kelly

Anton Moore

Sheila Munson

Betty Beaufort

Shelvia Williams

Brian Romano

Stefania Zuccarini

Bridget Palombo

Tatiana Byrd

Carol Foy Tenisha B
Carolyn Terry theodora ashby
Charles Reeves Tiffany Green

Christy Johnson

Todd Hestand

Demetrius Richardson

Tracy Pinson-Reviere

Edward McColly

Vanessa Hunter

Essence Bradshaw

Vensenaray Grimes

Gail Mapp Wayne T
Henry Hunter Saruh Almendarez
Isel Otero-Vera Sharon Kelly

Jackson Plumlee

Sheila Munson

Jacquelyn Sims

Shelvia Williams

James Kurtz

Stefania Zuccarini

jamila davis

Tatiana Byrd

Janaya Brown Tenisha B

Jessica Wilson theodora ashby
Jihad Ali Tiffany Green
Jordan Levy Todd Hestand

Josh Cohen Tracy Pinson-Reviere
Julie Vanessa Hunter

Katherine Rapin

Vensenaray Grimes

Kiyana Grimes

Wayne T

Ladreese Grimes

Malik Benin

Marcos Lomeli

Marlana Moore

Mathen Pullukattu

Melissa Freeman

Mike Tomasetti

Nicole Thomas

Noelle Warford

Rebecca Fruehwald

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022

Page 12 of 48



PUBLIC COMMENTS SUBMITTED IN Q&A
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING

Tuesday, May 10, 2022 at 10:00 AM, held remotely using Zoom Webinar

# Question Asker Name Answer

1 would you please share the link to turn the key a weiss/SoLo Currently there isn't a webpage for Turn the Key,
project thank you -allison weiss SoLo that will be forthcoming

2 Do we have a map, or know the geographic Marcos Lomeli RFPs are posted at the following weblink, the
location, of the upcoming RFP's and parcels packages include a map. We do not issue lists of
destined for Turn The Key? future RFPs only when they are ready for posting.

https://phdcphila.org/rfps-rfqs-
sales/development-rfps/

3 I represent the Black Contractors Coaliton Vanessa Hunter | Please email Jessie Lawrence at
Association. You mentioned Seveta 1 as the jessie.lawrence@phdc.phila.gov we will put you
Developer. We would like to assure the minority in touch with the developer.
contractors receive jobs for the contractors in this
community on this project. Will the contact
information for the Developer be available? Who
will sober see D&I on this project?

4 Can we please ask that the site be revisted until Noelle Warford
this decision can be made?

5 why don't they put low income housing on those | Carol Foy
lots

6 thank you. if we could be notified when it is up. a weiss/SoLo Will do
thank you again. -aw
mr reeves Charles Reeves
my hand is raise Charles Reeves I will call on you.
those house Xy are four story tall Carol Foy

10 | Is the house to go on 3000 Titan to be two or Melissa Freeman | They will be two story
three story? You said tie into the existing
property line but mine is two story, 812 sq. ft.

10 | Is the house to go on 3000 Titan to be two or Melissa Freeman | The house on 3000 Titan is planned to be 2
three story? You said tie into the existing stories tall and 1,100 sq ft (3 bedrooms, 1.5
property line but mine is two story, 812 sq. ft. baths). Please review pages 75-82 of the board

packet that is on the website to see the
information and the plans

11 | maybe we should file in court? Melissa Freeman

12 | Mr. Ali is right in saying that this process is Sharon Kelly We will look into better materials
seriously flawed. On S. 31st St., we only received
notice by means of a posted paper sign that was
poorly waterproofed and became nearly
unintelligble due to the recent rain. This
absolutely does seem structurally subject to
abuse, as Mr. Ali said just now.

13 | I'm hitting 40% mbe/wbe numbers. I will freely Mike Tomasetti | Please reach to Mr. Ali. Thank you.
share them with this gentleman. I'm all about
accountability

14 | Yes, I also sent Ms. Saah a picture of the post Melissa Freeman | We will look into better material for posting

next to me that was not protected from rain. |
could not read a lot of it. Yet we’re moving
forward.

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022

Page 13 of 48




Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 14 of 48



Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 15 of 48



Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 16 of 48



Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 17 of 48



Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 18 of 48



Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 19 of 48



Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 20 of 48



Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 21 of 48



Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 22 of 48



Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 23 of 48



Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 24 of 48



Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 25 of 48



Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 26 of 48



Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 27 of 48



Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 28 of 48



Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 29 of 48



From: Kristin Schwab <Kristin Schwab@ Phila gov>

Sant: Monday, May 9, 2022 3:55 PM

To: Argel B Rodriguez <Angel B Rodriguezid@phde phila. gove; Anne Fadullon

<Anne. Fadullond@ Phila.gove; Julia Hinckley <lulia. Hinckley@Phila. govs; Laura Crandall
<Laura. Crandali@Phila.govs; Caroline Cruz <Caroline. Cruz@phila.govs; Ash Richards
=Ashley Richards@phila.govs; Orlando Almante <Orlanda. Almonte@Phila.gov=

Cc: Christine Knapp <Christine. Knapp@phila.gov>
Subject: Saving + Preserving Memaorial Garden in Haddington

Good afterncon Angel, Anne, Julia, Ash, Laura, Crlande, Carcline (w/ Christine cc'd),

larm writing to you all as members of cur strategic initiative working group on land access and
cwnership. In cur work together last year, we worked to tackle the interrelated issues of food
access + health and racial equity + inclusive economies + thriving neighborhoods. In cur work
area, we discussed promoting permanency in focd-producing spaces + making legal access for
City-held land for community gardens and urban agriculture accessible, long-term,
transparent, and predictable.

The current situation with Urban Tree Connection's (UTC) Memoerial Garden in Haddington is
ancpportunity to do just that. For those whe don't know, two weeks apo, the Land Bank
conveyed 8 of 14 parcels that make up Urban Tree Cennection's (UTC) Memcrial Garden for
housing develcprment.

I am writing to ask that we work together to save and preserve that garden and use this
moment to catalyze larger structural change at the City when it comes to land access and
ownership, especially in poor and working class Black and brown communities that suffer
from historical disinvestment. What are you thoughts on how we can do 50 as members
from across the Mayor's Administration?

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 30 of 48



Attached are thoughts from members of the Food Policy Advisory Council (FPAC) in the form
of a draft letter that they plan to finalize, sign, and share with Anne, Angel, and
Councilmembers Jones and Gauthier this week. FPAC is in support of Haddington residents
and UTC's ask that the 8 parcels be taken out of the proposal and conveyed to UTC so that
the park can be preserved. Their support align's with the policy recommendations they

shared with us at our Leadership Table meeting on November 3pth (slides, summary of
recommendations, and full recommendations) and the conversations we have had about

improving the transparency, accessibility, and consistency of Land Bank processes.

Anne and Angel, | hope you are able to take this letter into consideration at your meeting

tomorrow morning.

Our staff and appointed members are available to work with you on advocating for and

making structural changes that center community needs, preserve land for agricultural use
and affordable housing, and make our neighborhoods, especially those who have suffered
historic disinvestment, healthier and safer for all. Please let us know how you would like to

move forward.

Best wishes and much thanks,

Kristin

Kristin Schwab

Pronouns: She/her

Philadelphia Food Policy Advisory Council Interim Manager
Office of Sustainability

1515 Arch St, 13t Floor, Philadelphia, PA 19102

Mobile: 267-718-5028

www . phillyfpac.org
www.facebook . com/phillyfpac
. hillv

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 31 of 48



Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 32 of 48



Philadelphia Food Policy Advisory Council (FPAC)

Since 2011, the Philadelphia Food Policy Advisory Council (FPAC) has connected
Philadelphians and our local government to create a more just food systern—where all people
have the power to access, own and control our food, land and labor. Our 25 appointed members
include people from a variety of roles and experiences in our local food system, including West
Philadelphia residents, farmers and food producers, and representatives of non-profit agencies.

Addressing Structural Racism

Members of FPAC and the Urban Agriculture subcommittee make recommendations to
government leaders for policy that impacts access and security of land for agricultural uses in
Black, Brown, Indigenous, poor, and marginalized communities that have experienced
disinvestment due to structural racism. Lower-income neighborhoods in Philly have access to
44 percent less park space than richer neighborhoods; similarly, neighborhoods of color have 42
percent less park space compared to white neighborhoods. Land used for urban farming and
gardening provides a way to connect residents to community stewardship and ownership of
public spaces. In addition, residents’ lived experiences and research reveal the relationship
between increased access to green space and positive health, economic, and social outcomes,
as well as the power of green spaces to address climate change.

Affordable Housing and Urban Agriculture are Inextricable

FPAC realizes the City’s ever-growing need for more affordable housing. The city’s investment
in cleaning, greening, and revitalizing lots yields redevelopment proceeds, saves the city $20
million in health, safety, and police efforts to remediate blight, and generates $3.6 billion in
property value. \We believe Philadelphia can achieve affordable housing and land security for
agricultural purposes in low wealth communities. More so, the case of Urban Tree Connection’s
Memorial Garden is an opportunity for the Philadelphia Land Bank (PLB) to demonstrate to the
City that housing development can and should include green space and that City development
processes can be a platform for residents, community organizations and institutions, and
developers to engage in dialogue and partner to create more livable communities for all
Philadelphians.

FPAC’s Recommendation

FPAC recommends that the City of Philadelphia (1) provide PHDC the organizational capacity to
implement the policies outlined in the Land Bank’s Strategic Plan (2019)' and the pending

T FPAC recommends pricritizing the following from the Land Bank Strategic Flan to support land for
agriculture use:
¢ Predictable and transparent communications (p.43)
e« Update Acquisition and Disposition Policies (p.43) by revising policies and procedures on garden
restrictions and allowable agriculture uses for non-disposition interim uses
e Take action to preserve active gardens (p.46)
e Update the process for how people engage the Land Bank (p.50)

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 33 of 48



Urban Agriculture Plan 2022 recommendations, specifically by dedicating and hiring
PHDC/Land Bank staff for agriculture land use management activities. And (2), as outlined in
our Fiscal Year 2023 Policy Recommendations (https:/phillyfpac.org/food-policy/), which were
shared with the Mayor’s administration on November 30, 2021, FPAC recommends that the City
reactivate vacant lots (or secure existing gardens on formerly vacant land) for agriculture use.

Centering Community, Improving Accessibility, and Increasing Transparency in
Philadelphia Land Bank Conveyance Processes

Further, there are specific parts of PLB's land conveyance process that FPAC would like to take
this opportunity to highlight which have already led to the loss of community garden and urban
agriculture spaces in other districts this year.

1. The UTC and the community were not included in the planning discussions around
Memorial Garden and the land's use.

2. The method that PLB used to finally communicate with UTC was not direct. Rather than
emailing or mailing UTC, a printed letter was stuck in a planter at the garden by a PLB
staff member which means they would have seen Memorial Garden’s activity, sighage,
and renovations signaling to PLB that it was an active and maintained community green
space.

3. Despite being included in the City's Urban Agriculture plans and a Philadelphia Division
of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) project, UTC's Memorial Garden was
allowed to be conveyed through the Land Bank to a housing developer instead of UTC
to be preserved. This highlights the need for improved communication and cooperation
between PLB and other City of Philadelphia agencies about land development plans.

4. PLB currently does not have a transparent, predictable, and easy to havigate process for
community gardens to renew their garden permits. Since the pandemic, PLB's
processes have remained completely digital (online) making it challenging for community
groups to connect with PLB staff to engage in the processes that are meant to preserve
the land on which they are growing food.

5. PLB’s land disposition and acquisition system is currently inaccessible for garden groups
who are interested in pursuing the purchase of City land that they are using for urban
agriculture purposes. Since PLB's Expressions of Interest (EOI) system was
discontinued, there is no entry point for qualified applicants to begin the application
process to acquire property for agriculture use through the Land Bank.

Climate Resilience and Environmental Justice

The Philadelphia Garden Data Collaborative’s database identifies more than 400 active gardens
and farms across 900 parcels or pieces of land in Philadelphia. Over 140 are repotrted to be no

o Develop a community outreach strategy and collaborate with external crganizations to improve
connections with communities across the city (p.51)
e Redesign the website and update the EQI process (p.53)

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 34 of 48



longer active with over 100 at risk of being lost in 2022 alone due to the City's current
development processes. Urban Tree Connection’s Memorial Garden is now among this list. City
Council and Philadelphia Land Bank have the power to change this trajectory. Hundreds of
Philadelphians grow their own food on this land, while also providing much needed community
green space as local temperatures are steadily rising. Additionally, research evidence has
pointed to reductions in crime surrounding community gardens. All of these environmental
factors disproportionately impact Philadelphia’s lowest income neighborhoods and people of
color. This is an environmental justice issue.

Community Leadership Meets Community Needs

As an organization that pricritizes community leadership and development, UTC serves as an
anchor for community-driven farming, gardening and land stewardship in \West Philadelphia.
Over the past two decades, UTC has partnered with residents in Haddington to redevelop 29
vacant lots, totaling more than 86,000 square feet of land. Together, they have reclaimed and
stewarded open green spaces that promote community gathering and gardening, safety, and
holistic health and well-being.

UTC has been significantly shaped by Haddington residents, from the founding of Neighborhood
Foods Farm and their first community-operated farm stand to their gardens and parks. They
continue to evolve their programming to center the voices and interests of residents, deeply
engaging them in all aspects of UTC’s work. During the COVID-19 pandemic, UTC organized
block captains and 45 families to launch the Food Sovereignty Shares (FSS) Program that
distributed 958 boxes of fresh produce grown at UTC Neighborhood Food (NF) Farms over 22
weeks. While our supply chain struggled during the pandemic, Haddington residents were
growing food and feeding one another.

Violence Reduction

Founded in 2003, Memorial Garden is a place of solace for families and neighbors who have
lost loved ones to gun violence. The space is dedicated to several young men who were killed
since 1993. The beautifully carved wooden sign posted at the entrance to the garden reminds
visitors of this history and unfortunately continues to be relevant today as gun violence is at an
all time high. Because of this, UTC has been very thoughtful about building partnerships with
nonprofits, local foundations, and City agencies to maximize the potential of Memorial Garden
for the community.

Partnerships

UTC just completed a major community-design process with Dr. Gina South (Penn United
Health Lab (UHL)) and Pennsylvania Horticultural Society (PHS), with beautiful upgrades to the
site. They have been a partner with The Food Trust for over a decade for their federal
USDA-funded SNAP-Ed programming for nutrition and gardening education, farmers markets,
and Farm-to-Early Childcare programming. In 2015, children of UTC's Memotial Garden were
recoghized at City Hall by the Mayor’s Office for their parthership with the Departments of

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 35 of 48



Health and Parks and Recreation for their work with Philly Powered. Since 2019, UTC has been
awarded a contract to maintain vacant parcels (including Memorial Garden) through the PHS’s
Community LandCare program funded through the City’s Division of Housing and Community
Development (DHCD). In 2021, the Penn UHL invited UTC to participate in the Nature &
Wellbeing Project (NWBP), a study funded by the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation to evaluate
the impact of community greenspaces on mental health and wellbeing. The UHL is a
research-action group dedicated to partnering with communities to build healthy and safe
neighborhoods. Alongside the Penn UHL and PHS, UTC led door-to-door canvassing and
community meetings to upgrade the site into a beautiful park based on community feedback that
safety, maintenance and recreation were priority. The new park provides high visibility, new trees
and plants, large open play space, and a walking path. On Earth day weekend last month,
neighbors celebrated the reopening of the park. Bottom line is that FPAC does not want to see
these massive investments and the community's time and energy be lost.

Given the community support, massive local investment over the decades, and benefit of
Memorial Garden to residents in Haddington, we ask that you save all eight (8) of the lots
from being sold to a developer. Instead we recommend that the City convey the eight (8)
City-owned lots to Urban Tree Connection and withdraw the remaining six () privately owned
parcels from the sheriff's sale so that this park will be preserved. Demonstrate to Philadelphians
that the City is capable of equitable development by engaging in a community-centered and
place-focused strategy that will address Haddington'’s affordable housing needs without erasing
its green infrastructure that is reducing health and economic inequalities in the community.

VWe hope that we can count on you to protect this important community asset.

Sincerely,

Philadelphia Food Policy Advisory Council

Appointed Members

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 36 of 48



RESOLUTION NO. 2022 - 10

RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION 2022-9 TO REMOVE 533, 539, 541 AND 543 N.
CONESTOGA STREET FROM THE APPROVED DISPOSITION AND TO APPROVE THE
CORRESPONDING REDUCTION IN NUMBER OF HOUSING UNITS CONSTRUCTED AND
PRICE PAID BY CIVETTA 1, LLC

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank
(“Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property of the
Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, subject
to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and conditions of
Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) approved the conveyance of 533, 539, 541, 543,
650, 658 and 662 N. Conestoga Street; 5436 W. Girard Avenue; 5552 Harmer Street; 642, 644 and 653 N.
Sickels Street; 534-36, 538-40, 546 and 550 N. 54th Street; and 623-33, 641, 643, 645, 647, 649, 651, 653
and 655 N. 55th Street to Civetta 1, LLC (the “Purchaser”) for the price of Three Thousand Two Hundred
and 00/100 Dollars ($3,200.00) for the construction of forty-five (45) housing units, pursuant to Resolution
2022-9 adopted on April 12, 2022;

WHEREAS, the Board desires to amend Resolution 2022-9 in order to remove 533, 539, 541 and
543 N. Conestoga Street (the “Garden Properties”) from the list of properties to be conveyed to the
Purchaser in order to assist in the preservation of an urban garden maintained on the Garden Properties,
resulting in the following amended list of properties to be conveyed: 650, 658 and 662 N. Conestoga Street;
5436 W. Girard Avenue; 5552 Harmer Street; 642, 644 and 653 N. Sickels Street; 534-36, 538-40, 546 and
550 N. 54th Street; and 623-33, 641, 643, 645, 647, 649, 651, 653 and 655 N. 55th Street (collectively, the
“Property™);

WHEREAS, the removal of the four Garden Properties necessitates a reduction in the number of
housing units to be constructed on the Property from forty-five (45) units to forty-one (41) units and a
reduction in price for the Property from Three Thousand Two Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($3,200.00) to
Two Thousand Eight Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($2,800.00);

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is in the best interest of the Land Bank to approve
the removal of the Garden Properties from the list of properties to be conveyed to the Purchaser and to
approve the corresponding reduction in the number of units constructed on the Property and reduction in
price paid for the Property.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the
Philadelphia Land Bank that:

1. The removal of 533, 539, 541 and 543 N. Conestoga Street from the list of properties approved for
disposition to the Purchaser and the corresponding reduction in the number of units to be constructed
on the Property to forty-one (41) units and reduction in price for the Property to Two Thousand Eight
Hundred and 00/100 ($2,800.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject
to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council.

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 of
the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council.

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 37 of 48


http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=pennsylvania(philadelphia_pa)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%27Chapter%2016-400%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_Chapter16-400

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby
authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform
any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to consummate
the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from time to time and
at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of them, as may be
necessary or desirable. The Transaction Documents and any amendments, supplements, and
modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior
Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this Resolution, and, when so
executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the Land
Bank.

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be
necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior Counsel
will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the
date of such modifications.

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on May 10, 2022.

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 38 of 48




From: Melissa Freeman

To: Andrea Saah

Cc: Robert Freeman

Subject: Objection to proposed transfer of 3000 Titan St.
Date: Friday, May 6, 2022 4:25:19 PM

External Email Notice. This email comes from outside of City government. Do not click on
links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender.

Hello Ms. Saah,

I own 3002 Titan St. and have been trying to buy 3000 Titan for several months under the side
yard program. However, the Land Bank's website did not give an option to apply online and
the number listed is for a revenue office. The person who answered said her office has nothing
to do with the purchase of lots and didn't know why her number is listed. [ tried a few times to
get the correct number through 311 and was directed to a number that said the I.and Bank is
closed. The voice mail was full. I contacted Councilman Kenyatta Johnson's office. Chief of
Staff Chris Sample said he would look into it. [ haven't heard anything back.

I see a notice now posted at 3000 Titan indicates the [L.and Bank is still closed. But it shows
there has apparently been a contact within the closed office that those with inside knowledge
can access. The property is about to be transferred to a developer buying multiple lots.

I was not given an opportunity to buy the side yard and therefore object to its transfer. Please
provide me with the contact information for the May 10th, 10 am meeting, and any
requirements that I need to fulfill beforehand.

Regards,

Melissa Freeman

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 39 of 48



RESOLUTION NO. 2022 - 11

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF
1310, 1315, 1320, 1322, 1326 AND 1349 S. CORLIES STREET; 1537 S. PATTON STREET;
3000, 3010, 3018, 3036, 3046 AND 3050 TITAN STREET; 3002, 3003, 3009, 3014, 3016, 3018, 3020,
3022, 3024 AND 3026 WHARTON STREET; 1334 S. 30™ STREET; AND 1329 S. 315" STREET TO
CIVETTA PROPERTY GROUP LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank
(“Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property of the
Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, subject
to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and conditions of
Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interest of
the Land Bank to convey 1310, 1315, 1320, 1322, 1326 and 1349 S. Corlies Street; 1537 S. Patton Street;
3000, 3010, 3018, 3036, 3046 and 3050 Titan Street; 3002, 3003, 3009, 3014, 3016, 3018, 3020, 3022,
3024 and 3026 Wharton Street; 1334 S. 30th Street; and 1329 S. 31st Street (collectively, the “Property”) to
Civetta Property Group Limited Liability Company (the “Purchaser”).

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the
Philadelphia Land Bank that:

1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for Two Thousand Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars
($2,500.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval by
resolution of Philadelphia City Council.

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 of
the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council.

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby
authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform
any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to consummate
the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from time to time and
at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of them, as may be
necessary or desirable. The Transaction Documents and any amendments, supplements, and
modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior
Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this Resolution, and, when so
executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the Land
Bank.

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be
necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior Counsel
will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the
date of such modifications.

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on May 10, 2022.

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 40 of 48



http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=pennsylvania(philadelphia_pa)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%27Chapter%2016-400%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_Chapter16-400

JUNE 14, 2022 PLB BOARD MEETING

MATERIALS FOR AGENDA ITEM 4.A

TABLED

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 41 of 48



JUNE 14, 2022 PLB BOARD MEETING

MATERIALS FOR AGENDA ITEM 4.B

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 42 of 48



RESOLUTION NO. 2022 -

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF
6131 BAYNTON STREET TO
LEAH KOONTZ

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land

Bank (the “Land Bank™) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in
real property of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests
of the Land Bank, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject
further to the terms and conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best

interest of the Land Bank to convey 6131 Baynton Street (the “Property”) to Leah Koontz (the
“Purchaser”).

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the

Philadelphia Land Bank that:

1.

The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for One and 00/100 U.S. Dollar ($1.00) and a
thirty (30) year mortgage for Twenty-Nine Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety-Nine and 00/100 U.S.
Dollars ($29,999.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to
approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council.

The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section
16-404 of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council.

Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each
hereby authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver,
and perform any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or
desirable, to consummate the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction
Documents™) and, from time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the
Transaction Documents, or any of them, as may be necessary or desirable. The Transaction
Documents and any amendments, supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such
terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or
appropriate subject to the terms of this Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the
Land Bank shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the Land Bank.

The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may
be necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior
Counsel will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting
following the date of such modifications.

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on
Philadelphia City Council Resolution No. dated

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 43 of 48



http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=pennsylvania(philadelphia_pa)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%27Chapter%2016-400%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_Chapter16-400

.ADDRESS: 6131 Baynton Street

. PROPERTY INFORMATION

Zip Code: 19144

Census Tract: 025200 Council District: 8

Zoning: RSA3

Lot Area: 1,262.25 Sq Ft

OPA Value: $6,000

Appraised Value: $30,000.00

Redevelopment Area: N/A

Urban Renewal Area: N/A

. APPLICANT INFORMATION

Applicant Name: Leah Koontz

Type: Side/Rear Yard

Homeowner Name(s): Leah Koontz

Mailing Address: 6129 Baynton Street, Philadelphia, PA 19144

Authorized Contact: Leah Koontz

Application Date: 5/25/2022

. PROJECT INFORMATION

Disposition Type: Side/Rear Yard (Individual only)

Strategic Plan Goal (Land Bank Only): Side/Rear Yard

Price Paid at Settlement: $1.00

Proposed Use: Side/Rear Yard

Mortgage Amount: $29,999.00

Type of Mortgage: 30-year, forgiven at end of 30 years

Total Project Costs: $4,400.00

Project Funding Available: Committed and Verified -
Applicant has provided documentation of available,
committed funds in an amount no less than total
project costs.

. APPROVALS, DEADLINES, EOP

Agreement Executed: TBD

Economic Opportunity Plan Goals: N/A

Land Bank Board Approval: TBD

PRA Board Approval: N/A

Project Start Date: One month after settlement

Project Completion Date: Three months after
settlement

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022

Page 44 of 48




6. DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY

Project Summary:

The applicant proposes to rehabilitate 6131 Baynton Street as a side yard.

Improvements include installing a new fence, paving a section, planting trees and garden beds.
Evidence of project financing has been provided in the form of a bank statement.

The applicant is compliant and in good standing with the City of Philadelphia.

The project will not be subject to an Economic Opportunity Plan.

The property will be subject to use restrictions as a side/rear yard.

Summary of Restrictions or Covenants: This transaction is subject to the following:
| Irrevocable Power of Attorney Right of Re-entry/Reverter

INSERT A SUMMARY OF THE RESTRICTIONS APPLICABLE TO THE TRANSACTION
I. Side/Rear Yards
A. Permitted Use.
e Premises shall only be used as a side yard or rear yard, as applicable, incidental to the Adjacent
Residence and not for any other use or purpose whatsoever.
e Parking, maintaining, and storage of motor vehicles, trailers, machinery, motorcycles, ATVs, boats, and
watercrafts is prohibited.
e No commercial activities.

e The Premises must be fenced. Any alley way located adjacent to the Premises shall not be fenced or
obstructed in any way.
e Must be used, operated, and maintained in accordance with the agreement and all applicable laws.

B. Mortgages and Deed Restrictions.

e Side/Rear Yards will have a 30-year mortgage that will be considered satisfied on the 30th anniversary
of the mortgage and shall have use restrictions during and after the term of the mortgage to ensure
that the property continues to be utilized as a side/rear yard. If the purchaser desires to sell the
property prior to the end of the term, approval must be granted, and the mortgage must be paid in full.

7. STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the disposition of 6131 Baynton Street as a side yard to Leah Koontz in accordance with the
Disposition Policy.

Prepared by:  Cristina Martinez — Development Specialist

Reviewed by: Jessie Lawrence — Director of Real Estate

Attachments - If box below is checked, the item is attached.
Property photos

Site Plan

Appraisal Summary Page

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 45 of 48



PROPERTY POSTING PHOTO(S)

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 46 of 48



SITE PLAN(S)

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 47 of 48



PROPERTY APPRAISAL(S)

PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
Danielle Deuber., Staff Appraiser

This is a Restricted Use Appraisal Report which is intended to comply with the reporting requirements set
forth under Standards Rule 2-2 (c) of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (“USPAP”). As
such, it does not present discussion of the data, reasoning and analyses used to develop the opinion of value,
except for commentary contained in the scope of work section of this report. Supporting documentation
concerning the data, reasoning, and analyses is retained in the work file of the appraiser. The depth of discussion
contained in this report is specific to the needs of the Philadelphia Land Bank of the and for the intended use stated
in the report. The appraiser is not responsible for the unauthorized use of this report. The analyses, opinions and
conclusions relating to the subject property were developed, and this report has been prepared in conformity with
USPAP requirements. The estimate of value is subject to certain Limiting Conditions and Assumptions outlined
in this report.

IDENTIFICATION OF SUBJECT PROPERTY: 6131 Baynton St
Philadelphia, PA 19144

OPINION OF VALUE: $30,000

USE OF REAL ESTATE EXISTING AS OF
MAY 26,2022 THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF VALUE: Vacant Land

USE OF REAL ESTATE REFLECTED
IN THIS APPRAISAL AS OF MAY 26, 2022 Vacant Land

SUBJECT PROPERTY OWNERSHIP AND SALES HISTORY': The subject property is owned by Philadelphia
Landbank.

IDENTIFICATION OF THE CLIENT:

Philadelphia Land Bank

Value only good for 6 months

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for June 14, 2022 Page 48 of 48





